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	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	RFP# 202505073 Stakeholder and Facilitation to Support Maine’s Electric Transmission Infrastructure Strategies

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Energy Resources

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	October 8, 2025

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	October 17, 2025

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	October 24, 2025, by 11:59pm local time (as amended)

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov

	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFP remain unchanged.

	
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES IN RFP:
1. Proposal Due Date is amended 
2. Language change to edit error in Task numbering


	
REVISED LANGUAGE IN RFP:

1. All references to the Proposals due date of October 20, 2025, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time is amended to October 24, 2025, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time.

2. Part II, Task 6, Page 10: "Task 6. Host and Facilitate at least 3 Virtual Public Meetings or Webinars to inform the Strategy sharing best practice findings from Task 2 Task 3 and progress on strategy development (e.g. Kickoff, Mid-Point, Final).”





Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.

	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, Page 5 
	How frequently will coordination occur between the awarded stakeholder consultant and the energy consultant selected under RFP #202509133? 

	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates that coordination between the stakeholder consultant (RFP #202505073) and energy consultant (RFP #202509133) will occur on a regular basis to be developed once awards are made and the scopes for the respective awards are finalized. 



	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, Section C, Page 8 
	If the contract is renewed for a second year, will the scope expand (e.g., additional engagement tasks, virtual webinars) or will it remain the same as outlined in the first contract year?  

	
	Answer

	
	If the contract is renewed for a second year, the scope of the contract renewal will reflect the needs of the Department to fulfill statutory obligations and support transmission strategy development. The entire scope of services sought in this RFP is expected to be completed within the initial period of performance.



	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 10 
	Does DOER expect in-person facilitation in addition to virtual meetings, or are all engagements anticipated to be virtual? 

	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates that all facilitation engagements will be virtual. 



	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 10 
	Does DOER have an existing stakeholder database or contact list we can build from, or would the selected partner build this? 

	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates the Bidder will prepare stakeholder list that is compiled from the L.D. 197 Stakeholder Group, existing DOER contacts, and other interested transmission parties at the state and regional level. 



	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 2, Page 9
	How frequently do you expect the statutorily mandated stakeholder group to meet, how long are its meetings, is it in person or on-line, and how many total meetings of this group do you envision?


	
	Answer

	
	The L.D. 197 Stakeholder Group must hold at least three meetings. DOER anticipates these meetings to be virtual, with the duration and frequency subject to statutory requirements and engagement needs to support strategy development.



	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 3, Page 10 
	Will the literature of best practices for stakeholder engagement with respect to transmission planning to be reviewed be specified? Or is part of the task to also identify such materials?  

	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates the Bidder identifying the literature of best practices for stakeholder engagement with respect to transmission planning. 



	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 4, Page 10
	For Task 4, is the stakeholder engagement plan intended to guide what is done in Task 7, or rather, is it a broader plan whose recommendations might extend beyond this contract?


	
	Answer

	
	The Stakeholder Engagement Plan developed in Task 4 is anticipated to inform the stakeholder engagement process through the transmission strategy development, as directed by L.D. 197. 



	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 5, Page 10 
	Development of public communications materials is a very broad scope. Please define the scope further. Will it be content only? Or, are graphic design, and or production and or printing also expected? How many fact sheets? How many website pages?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder will work with DOER communications team to develop a scope of need for communications materials. DOER anticipates the awarded bidder to be focused on content to explain transmission and value to stakeholders through digestible materials. 



	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 5, Page 10
	For Task 5, can you confirm which communications products are the highest priority and how you envision sequencing them within the overall engagement timeline? 


	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates the Bidder identifying communication products that will be most useful to explain transmission and its value to stakeholders. Examples include fact sheets and other website materials.



	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 5, Page 10
	Could you give us a sense of the scale, type, and number of communication assets expected under task 5? 


	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates the Bidder identifying communication products that will be most useful to explain transmission and its value to stakeholders. Examples include fact sheets and other website materials.



	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 6, Page 10 
	How many participants do you expect to participate in each of the virtual public meetings or webinars?  

	
	Answer

	
	Participation in virtual public meetings and webinars may vary. Public meetings and webinars hosted by DOER have ranged from approximately 20-200 participants. 



	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 6, Page 10 
	In the first sentence did you mean Task 3 and not Task 2?   

	
	Answer

	
	Please see the Revised Language in the RFP section on Page 1 of the Q&A Summary.  



	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 6, Page 10 
	Do you have a preferred and/or required meeting platform for hosting webinars and virtual meetings (e.g., Zoom, Teams)? Or are you open to bidders including a platform to use as part of the proposal?  

	
	Answer

	
	DOER utilizes Zoom for hosting webinars and public meetings. 



	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 6, page 10
	To better calculate travel costs, can you provide an estimate of how many meetings are expected to be in person vs virtual?  

	
	Answer

	
	Please see question and answer to number 3. 



	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 7, page 10
	Could you give us an indication of the amount or scale of activities you would expect in task 7?  


	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates the Bidder to identify and recommend additional methods to solicit feedback beyond public meetings or webinars.



	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Task 7, Page 10
	What is your expectation around the geographic granularity/spread of stakeholder input that might be described in Task 7 (related to in person versus on-line, etc.)?


	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates the Bidder to identify and recommend additional methods to solicit feedback beyond public meetings or webinars. 



	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, Page 15 
	Will the State issue a Time & Materials or Firm-Fixed Price contract?  

	
	Answer

	
	Please Part VI, Section A: Contract Document in the RFP. 



	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, Page 16  
	Is there an anticipated budget range or ceiling for this engagement effort that bidders should consider when structuring their cost proposal?  

	
	Answer

	
	As specified in Part IV of the RFP, the cost proposal must include the costs necessary for the Bidder to fully comply with the contract terms, conditions, and RFP requirements. This total cost becomes a not-to-exceed contract amount. The Bidder will invoice hours worked and other expenses incurred on a time-and-materials basis, subject to the not-to-exceed total contract amount. 



	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	PART V, Sections A&B, Page 17  
	Can you confirm there is no requirement for the winning bidder to be in-state and that no preference will be given to in-state companies?  

	
	Answer

	
	There is no requirement for the winning bidder to be in-state. Proposals will be scored based on the Evaluation Process outlined in Part V. 





	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part V, Section C, Page 18 
	Does the underlined statement below indicate it is possible that different bidders may be chosen to perform different tasks?  
The Department reserves the right to reject any and all proposals or to make multiple awards. 

	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates making one (1) award as a result of this RFP process. As stated in Part V, Section C: Selection of Award, the Department reserves the right to make no awards or multiple awards. 



	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VI, Section A, Page 23
	The State’s Service Contract indicates that there is possibility for Exceptions to its standard terms (Rider C) and the RFP materials indicate that the State is willing to negotiate with the awarded Bidder.  Does the State have specific procedures for Bidders to submit proposed exceptions to the standard Contract?  Should they be submitted with Bidders’ proposal documents?


	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should not submit proposed exceptions to the State’s Service Contract with their proposal documents. As stated in Part VI, Section B, following the award, a Contract Administrator from the Department will be appointed to assist with the development and administration of the contract and to act as administrator during the entire contract period.  Department staff will be available after the award to consult with the awarded Bidder in the finalization of the contract.




	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, Page 26 
	Appendix D includes an hourly rate by task, but not by individual; however, we anticipate using individual from multiple labor categories (with varying hourly rates) across all tasks. Would the state accept an hourly cost buildup that includes multiple hourly rates for each task? If not, would the State accept an average hourly rate?   

	
	Answer

	
	The Bidder may include multiple hourly rates per task, as long as a position title and the estimated hours accompanies each hourly rate. For example, if the Bidder plans to utilize a Project Manager, Consultant, and Analyst for Task 3, please include each of those positions’ estimated hours on that task, their hourly rates, and then the cumulative total cost for Task 3.  




	23
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, Page 26  
	Is there an Excel template for Appendix D that bidders should use to complete?

	
	Answer

	
	There is no Excel template for Appendix D. 



	24
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Would the State consider provisions limiting the liability of the Service Provider in the final contract with the awarded bidder? Has the State ever allowed for a liability cap in similar consultancy agreements previously?


	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not anticipate allowing a liability cap.



	25
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Is there a maximum length for the proposal you wish proposers to adhere to?


	
	Answer

	
	There is no maximum length for the proposal. The Department seeks detailed yet succinct responses that demonstrate the Bidder’s qualifications, experience, and ability to perform the requirements specified throughout the RFP.



	26
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What is your expectation around the interface between state, ISO-NE, technical contractor and the engagement work, given ISO-NE has a major transmission planning role?  


	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates the awarded bidder would need minimal direct interaction with  ISO-NE. If needed, DOER will coordinate any engagement with ISO-NE.  



	27
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	The RFP for the technical contractor also includes a best practices task for engagement. Could you clarify further about the respective roles for this task among the two RFPs?


	
	Answer

	
	DOER anticipates the stakeholder engagement best practices developed from RFP #202505073 to inform engagement with the L.D.197 Stakeholder Group, as well as the Department’s best practices when engaging stakeholders on transmission related topics. 



	28
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	The Department of Energy Resources currently has two active RFPs for consulting support on the state's transmission needs, one for stakeholder engagement and the other for stakeholder analysis. Is DOER explicitly seeking separate contractors for the two RFPs or would the state be open to awarding the two contracts to one consultant?


	
	Answer

	
	There is no provision in this RFP that prohibits Bidders from submitting proposals for other open RFPs. Proposals will be scored based on the Evaluation Process outlined in Part V.
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